12th Floor

ScR. BATI_IBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP “UB City" Canberra Block
No. 24, Vittal Mallya Road
Bengaluru - 560 001, India

Tel : +91 80 6648 9000

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited (formerly Premium Garments
Wholesale Trading Private Limited)

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private
Limited (formerly Premium Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited) (“the Company™), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant

to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes cvaluating

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide e
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 5 & s
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of written representations reccived from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2018,
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of

such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2™ to this report;
(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

infor 3 A - INe giuen o
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 25¢ to the Ind AS financial statements:
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives con

there were any material foreseeable losses; and

tracts for whi
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ii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Chandra Kumar Rampuria
Partner

Membership Number: 055729
Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: June 22, 2018
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Annexure 1 referred to in our report to the Members of Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Premium Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited) (“the Company”) for the year ended
March 31, 2018. We report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) All property. plant and equipment were physically verified by the management in the previous year in

accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at the year end and no
material discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans.
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of
the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order arc not applicable. :

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance
of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Act for the products/services of the Company.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including employees’ state insurance, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of
excise, cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities though there has been slight delays in depositing income tax, value added tax, goods and
services tax, provident fund and profession tax dues in few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed dues in respect of provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added
tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable, are as follows:

Statement of Arrears of Statutory Dues Outstanding for More than Six Months:

Name of the Statute Nature of the Amount Period to Due Date Date  of

Dues {Rs. in which the Pavment
lakhs) amount
relates

CGST/SGST UTGST) | GST payable 84.06 July 2017 till | 20™  of the | April 26,
Act, 2017 and IGST on reverse September succeeding 2018
Act, 2017 charge 2017 month to
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which it

pertains
Andhra Pradesh Tax | Professional 0.16 Jun 2017 to | 10th of every | Not paid
On Professions, Tax Sep 2017 month
Trades, Callings And
Employment Act 1987
The Assam | Professional 0.02 Apr 2017 to | 31st of every | Not paid
Professions, Trades, Tax Sep 2017 month
Callings And
Employments
Taxation Act, 1947
Gujarat  Panchayats, | Professional 0.22 Apr2017to | I5th of every | Not paid
Municipalities, Tax Sep 2017 month
Municipal
Corporations And
State Tax On
Professions, Trades,
Callings And
Employment Act 1976
Madhya Pradesh | Professional 0.15 Apr 2017 to | 10th of every | Not paid
Professional Tax, Tax Sep 2017 month
1955
Maharashtra State Tax | Professional 0.17 August 2017 | 31st of every | Not paid
On Professions, Tax month
Trades, Callings And
Employment Act 1975
The Orissa State Tax | Professional 0.06 Apr2017to | 31st of every | Not paid
On Profession, Trades, Tax Sep 2017 month
Callings And
Employments Act,
2000
Town Panchayats, | Professional 0.22 August 2017 | 30th Not paid
Municipalities  And Tax September &
Municipal 31st March
Corporations  Rules
1988
West Bengal State Tax | Professional 0.23 Apr 2017 to | 21st of every | Not paid
On Professions, Tax Sep 2017 month
Trades, Callings And
Employment Act 1979
The Kerala Panchayat | Professional 0.08 August 2017 | 30th Not paid
Raj (Profession Tax) Tax September &

Rules, 1996

31st March
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(a) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of dispute, are as follows:

Name of Statute Nature of A(gsol::t Period to which the Forum where‘: dispute is
dues amounts relates pending
lakhs )
Income Tax Act, Income Tax 9.59 Assessment Year Commissioner of
1961 2013-14 Income-tax (Appeals)
Customs Act, Custom Duty 471.78%* January 2013 to Directorate of Revenue
1962 December 2017 Intelligence
Delhi Value CST 947.86 | Financial Year 2013- Department of Trade &
Added Tax Act, 14 Taxes Government of
2004 NCT of Delhi

* Amount paid under protest of Rs 42.04 lakh has been reduced from the amount demanded in arriving at
the aforesaid disclosure

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a bank. The Company did not have any
outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a financial institution or to government or dues to
debenture holders during the year.

(ix)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any
money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments) and term loans hence, reporting
under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon..

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report
that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the C ompany
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of Section 197
read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi)
are not applicabie and hence not commented upon.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions
of Section 177 the Act are not applicable to the Company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii)
insofar as it relates to Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented

upon.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv)
are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered

into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in Section 192
-

e
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(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

LA

per Chandra Kumar Rafnpuria
Partner
Membership Number: 055729

Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: June 22, 2018
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CALVIN KLEIN ARVIND FASHION LIMTED (FORMERLY
PREMIUM GARMENTS WHOLESALE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private
Limited (formerly Premium Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited) (“the Company™) as of
March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these ind AS financiai statements was estabiished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controis over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design an operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind AS Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind-AS financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide—
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statem ST I
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the com rc
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being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind
AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

. /

LS AN 7T
per Chandra Kumar Rampuria
Partner
Membership Number: 055729
Place of Signature: Bengaluru
Date: June 22, 2018




Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
tlormerly Preminm Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Bataee Shect us of Mareh 31,2018

ASSETS

Non-currentassets
Properte, plans aind equipment
Inlangrhle assots
Finangial wisets
Seewrity deposit

Onher non-current Nnanciol assets

Income tax assels (net)
Other nonecurrent assets
Total non-currcnd assets

Current assets
Inventones
Fraanciaf assets
Trade receivables
Cashand cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Oiher curreal tinancial ussets
Ciher current assels
Tutal current ussets

Total assety
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Fquity

Equity share vapital

Ohfrer o
Share premum
Retanted carfimgs

Tatal equity

HUI

Noti-curvent labilities
Faancal habilitics

Seeurioe deposits from customers

Long term provisrons

Totul non-curvent liabilities

Current lubilitiey

Finaneil labiliies
Horrowings
Trwde puvables

Ciher curvent tamicial Bahihives

Shord term provisions
Unther current Jrabilities
Total current Habilities

Tatal liabifities

Total cquity snd Habilities

Summry of significant sccounting policics

Nutes Mareh 31, 2018

1Ry, in Inkhs

March 312017
Ry, in fnkhs

3 798,78 94920
4 758.07 9228
5
3 153.84° 99 2.
35 109,90 ~ L0
6.35, P94
f 23.59 . 0.81
1,751,583 - 1.144.47
7 S04 $.677.82
N
52 3474.657 222768
53 43.19. 2302 -
54 100 16637
35 16,38~ 839«
G 2,506 02 546200
11,264.38 11,438.78
13.013.91 12,983.25
P -
8 100:93 9340
9]
9.1 10,072 64+ RO80018
43 6.532.93) (5,888 80y~
3.640.64 7 228478
H: )
1.1 130339 L1976
1 N4(33 5745
139242 1.167.21
10
1.2 425559 4.961.19°
10.3 2.904.03 3956349 ¢
10.4 6341 25.10°
I 29295, 7521
12 464,87 246,27
7.982.85 Y,331.26 -
Y.375.27 10,698.47
13,015.91 12,943.25
.

The sechipanying 1maes dre an inwegral part of the finabcia sttements,

As peroarreport of even date

For S.R, Batliboi & Associates L1

Chartered Accountants

HCAT Firm Registravion Number: TOTO89W E30000

pur Chandra Kumar Ratapuria
Partier

Membership No 053729
Place: Bengnlura

Date: 22+ /06//3/

For and on behall of the board of directors of
Calvin Klein Avviad Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Premivm Garments Wholesale Trading Private

Lamnied)

on B
yrector
DIN 07170598
Place BENGRLO KW
Dac 99|06 (R013

Shailesh Chaturvedi

Director

DIN:03023079

Place: B EN (C\E] @ RO

Dm~&&b6@3@




Culvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
(Tfoenicrly Preminm Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended Mavch 31,2018

Nutes
Licame
Revenue [rom operations 13
Orther income 14
Fingnee ancome 13
Total invome
Ixpenses
Purchase of raded poods 6
(Increased decrelise ininventories of traded goods 17
Employee benelits expense I8
Diepreciation and amortisation expense 19
IFinanee costs 20
Other expenses 21
Total expenses
Profit/(1Loss) before tax
Hicome tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax
Tatal tax expense
Profit/(Lass) for the vear
Qther comprehensive income
Other comprehiénsive income not 1o he reclassiied o profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-mensurement (losses) / paing on defined benefit plans
Othér comprehensive income for the veéar
Totad comprelicasive tncome for the year, net of tax
Earaing per equity share [nominal value per shave Rs, 10 (Maveh 31, 2017: Rs: (0)] 22
Hasican Ry, per share
Dilanedd in R, per share
Sumihary of simuficant accounting policies 22

March 31,2018
188, i lakhs

Murel 31, 2017
Ry, in lukhs

13,567.85 1293473
64125 19.73 ~
4.79 13.65
14,213.89 13,068,101 ~

494533 ~ 1031703 «

348468 (2:640.81)
140734 1.763.33 -
424,64, §37.52 .
610,38 629,85 -

4.002.61. 3.671.96"

14,845.18 14,299.48
{631.29) (1.231.37)
631.29) {1.231.37)

-
(12.84) 3.97
(12.84) -~ 3977
(644.13) (1.227.40)
T

{63.28),
(65.283

<

b
R
kg
Vo

Fhe pecompanving notes-are an integrad part of the flnancial stdements,
AS por cur report of dven date

For 5.1 Batlibol & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

1CAT i Registestion Number: T01049W/ 1300004

57 /

or Chandra K Raunpuria

Dartner director
Aembership No 035729 DING 07170598
I'iee: Béngaturu Plice: HENGRLLRO

Dater 9, 1/06/ I@’ Dates 3 &\0 bs&c) i

20f33

For and on behalf of the board of divectors of
Colvio Klein-Arvind Fashion Private Limitéd
(formerty Premium Garmients Wholesale ‘Trading Private Limitéd)

iAo

Shailesh Chanwvedi

Dircctor

DIN: 03023079

Place; BETNETHLOVRSD
Daer 28 )06]&0 (a3




Culvin Klein Arviad Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Preminm Garments Whelesale Trading Private Limited)
Statement of cash Nows for the yéar ended March 31,2018

Operating activities

Prolit/(Loss) before tax
Adjustments 1o reconcile prolit before tax 1o net cash Nowvs:
Depreciation of propeny, plant and cquipment
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Impairement of goodwill
Finance income
Fhnance costs
Fair value gain on finncial nstruments at. fair vadue through profit or loss
Eiubility no longer required, written back
Provision tor donbtful advances
Unrcahised foreign exchange fossi{gain)
l"rupcri)‘, plant and cquipment witlien ol

Working eapital adjustiments:
(Tnerease) 7 decrease in inventorics
{Incre
tInerease) deerease nothers Dinbneial assets
¢ICrouse) in non-current secirity: deposit
{Increase in other current assets
(Decrease) in trade payables
Iiereuse i seetrity deposit from customers
Inerease in other current financiil Habilitics
Inerease in provisions
Ficrease i other current tiabilitics

s¢) o trade receivables

Fncome tas {(paid refund
Netcash Nows fron 7 (used in} operating activities

Investing activities
Purctise of propesty, plant and vaqiipment
Pricecds from sale of property. plant and equipment
lvestment i bank deposits (having oviginal maturity of more than tree months)
Interest reevived (Tance income)
Neteash Tlows used b investing activities

Finaneing activities
Inerease in share capital
{Repaviient of) £ proveeds Fron-borrowings {net)
fnterest patd

Net eash lows from financing activities

Netiuerease/ (decrense) in‘cash and ensh equivalents
Cash and caslyeguivalont at the heginiing ol the vear
Cuash and cash equivalent at the end of the year

Cash and eadsh equivalents comprise of (refer note 8.3):
Bulunees with banks on curreit gecount

Deposits witlhimaturiny of lesy than 3 months

Cashownd ensh equivadents

Nutes:

Notes Mareh 31,2018 Mareh 31,2017
R, in lakhs Ry, in lalkhy
(631.29) (1,231.37)
3 376.20 482.85
4 4844 7 36.67
Bl . 18.00
15 (4791 (13.65)
532.98 518,85
{(79.46) -
{539,109 .
. 36.88
. (162,71}
5673 99,73
3,454.68 - (2.640.81)
(1,246:97) {(445.1m)
(0.28) 063
(53,44 B
(1,959.82) {52.13)
(500.36) (455.66)
17798 195,70
-7 47.71
23648 . $2.38
218.60. 70.71
66.58 (3.391.30)
(4.41) 1.08
62.17 (339027
(1.173.96),. (280,403
- 577
155.07- 2.7
762 . 12.35
(1.010.67) (265.00)
1.969.99 2,000.40
(705.60) . 228297
(314.82), (503.20)
779.57 3.778.17
{168.93)- 122,95
33 ARV 89.17
33 4319 . 21212
43.19 12,12
- 200.00
43.19 312,12

w The cagli Bow statement has beei prepared iider the indireet method as s¢t outin lndian Acconnting Standards (Ind AS 7). "Statement of Cash Flows®,

Sumnuuy of sipnificant accounting policics

22

As per our report of even date
Far S.R Balliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

J—r—

FOAL Pl Registration Number 10 1040W/7 E300004

por Chandra Kumar Raumpuria
Purier

Membership Nos Uss720
Plave: Bengabury

Date: 27,/ 05/ I5

30f 33

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
Cformerly. Premium Garments Wholesale Trading Private

Limited)

Dhrector
DIN 07170398
Phace: BE NENLLRL

Duie: & Io@ ) 2018
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Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited

(formerly Pecnibum Garnvents Wholesale Trading Private Limited)

Statemient of changes in equity for the vear ended March 31,2018

AL Equity shave capital

Fquity shares of Rs, 10each issued, subseribed and Tully paid;

As atApril 1,2616

Issue ol cquity share capital (reler note §)
As atMarch 31,27

tssue of equity share-capital (refer note'8)
AS b Mareh 31,2018

B Other cquiry
(Rs. nfakhsy

Balance as at April 1, 2016

Prendun on dssue of equity shares

(Lossyior the year

Other comprehensive income

Babance as at March 31,2017

Premunion issuc of equity shares {refer note 93
t1.08s} for theyear

Other comprehensive ingame

Balance asat Marehr 31, 2018

Thescebmpanying notes are an integral part ol the fnancial statements

Ax per our repurt of even date

For S.R Batibol & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

HCAT Firm Registration Nuriber: LOTO49W/ E300004

per Chutdrs Kumiar Rampuria
Partner

Monsbership No.: (053729
Place: Beagaturn

Dt 7,2,/0@/ {%

4 of 33

Shave premium
Noted. |

No, of shares

Ry, in tnkbs

600.622 6006,
333400 33,34
934027 | 9340 .
75,274 7.53
100.93

1.009.296 °

Retained Earnings
Note 9,2

Total equity

6,113,120 v (4:661,40) 145172
1967060~ . 1.967.06
. (123137 (123137
. %97 3.97
8,080.18> {3,888.80) 2,191,38
199246 W 199246
- (631.29) (63129}
- {12.84) {12.84)
10,072.64 6,832.93) 353,71
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Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Premium Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes 1o the financial statements for the vear ended March'31,2018

1. Corporate information

TheCompany was incorporated on March 31, 2011 inthe nume *Premium Garments Retail Private Limited’, which has been changed o
“Premium Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited” from May 10, 2011 and subsequently 1o Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private
Limited” from May 19:2016, The Company is engaged in: the business ol *Cush and carry wholesale trading of fashion apparels and
aceessories” in India

2, Signifieant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared intaccordance with Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind AS™) as issucd
under-the Companies (Indian Accounting Stidards) Rules, 2013 (as amended Trom time o time).

Thefinmeial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative
instraments), which ardmeasured at fair value (refer accounting policy régarding financial instruments).

The financial stdrements are presented i Indian Rupees (INR' and all values are rounded off" 1o the nearést lakh; except when
othénwvisé indicated.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a4, Currentversus nop-current elassification

The Conipaany presents asséts and iabilities in the balance sheet based on curréint/non-currént classification: An-assét is treated as
current when it is:

- Expeeted to berealised oF intended 1o be sold or consumed in the normal operating cvele

= Feld primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or Cash cquivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle o liability forat feasttwelve months after the
reporting period

Allother assetsare classified as non-current.

A fiability 1§ weated as curient when
- Itis expected o be settfed in the normal aperating evele
< Avis held primurily for the purpose of trading
- tis-due to besettled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
< There is no unconditional righi to defer the setlement of the Hability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

“The Company classifies all other labilitics as non-current,
Deferred tax ussets and Hubilities-are classitied as non-current assets and Habilities,

The operating eycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cashiequivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating exele,

b, Foreign ¢urrencies

Jiems included in the financial statemients o1 the Company are meastured using the curreney of the primary ¢¢onomic environment in
whichithe entity operates (e, the “lunctional currency™). The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, which is
dlsorthe Compaoay's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
Foreign carreney transactions are recorded on'initial recognition in the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing ot the date

of the wransaction, However, Tor practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate il the average approximates the actual rate at the
dute-ol the transuction.
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Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Premium Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes to-the financial statements for the vear ended Mareh 31,2018

Maovietary assets wnd lisbilities denominated in foreipgn currencies are transtated at the Tunctional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting dute,

Iixchange differences arising on the settdement or translation oFmonetary items are recognised in the statement of proficar logs.

Non-monetary items that are measured in wems of historical cost in u foreign currency are transtated Using the exchange rates ab the
dates of the initial tunsactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value ina foreign cirrency-are ranshited using the eXchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on eanslation of non-monctary items measured at e value is
wreated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fuir value of the item (i.e., ranslation differences on items whose
futr value gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCH or profit or loss are also recognised i QCT or profit or loss,
respectively).

¢, Fair value measurcement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at cach balance sheet date;

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell anasset of paid 1w transler a linbility in‘an orderly ransaGtion between market
purticipants al the measurement date. The fair value measarement is based o the presumiption that the transaction’ wsell the asset or
translor tiwe labilily takes place either:

- In the principal market for the assetor Hability; or

- In the absence of u prineipal market, in the most advantageous markel for the asset of Hability

Thesprineipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of wi asset ora Tiability is measured
using the assumptions that market purticipants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market partieipaits act in
their ceonomic best interest.,

A fair vitue nicasurement of a noi-linancial assel takes nto account o market participant’s ability o generate economic benetits by
using the asset in its highest and best use-ovby selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in'its highest and best
use,

The Compiny uses viduation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and Tor which su {Ticient data are available o measure
{air value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Adl ussets and Jiabilites for which fuir value is micasured or disclosed in the financial statements are caiegorised within the fair value
hicrarchy, deseribied as follows, based on the lowest tevel input that is significant o the fair value measurement as a whole;

- Level T Quoted (unadjusted) markel prices in active markets for identical assets or Habilities

- Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input thatis significant to the fuir value measurement is diveetly or
indirectly observible

- Lavel 3 — Valuation technigques for which the lowest fevel input that-is significant to the fair value measurement is unohservable

For-assets and labilides that are yecognised in the Tinancial statements on a veeurring basis, the Company determings whether tansfers
have oceurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest fevel inpul that is significant w the
fair value measurement as a whole) atthe-end of cach reporting perind.

Fairvalue for meusurement and/or disclosure purpose in these financial information is determined on such g basis, exeept for-1easing
transaction that are within the scope-ol Tod AS 17 and meuasurement that iave some similarities to fair value butard not {air value, such
asnet realisable value in nd AS 2 or vitlue inuse in Ind AS 36.
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Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Premiom Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes to-the financial statements Tor the vear ended March 31, 2018

d. Revenue recognition

Revenue is reeognised 1o the extent that it is probable that the ecconomic benelits will flow 1o the Compatiy. and the revenue ‘canl be
reliably measured, regardless ol when'the payment is being made. Revenue is measured ut the.fair value of the consideration received or
recetvable, taking finto account contracwially defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or dutics collected on behall of the
goveriment, The Company has concluded thatitis the principal in-all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all
the revenue arrangements as it has pricing ltitdde and is also exposed to inventory and eredit visks.

Sates tax /7 Value added tax (VAT) 7 Good and Services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on ils own account, Rather, it is a
i coliceted on value-added to'the commodity by the seller on behalt of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded Trom revenue,

Thespecific recognition eriteriu deseribed below must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale ol gools
Revenue from the sale of poods is recognized when the goods are delivered and the tides have pissed, at which time all the following
conditions are safisfied:

I the Company has transierred to the buyer the significantrisks and revard ol ownership of the goods;

2. the Company retaing neither continuing managerial involvement to e degreg:usually associsted with ovwnership nor elfective

control over the goods sold;

3. the amount of revenue can be:measured reliably:

4. itis probable that the economic beniefit associated with the transaction Will Now Lo the Company; and

3. thecosts incurred or o be incurred fnrespect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Revenue is measured - the fuie value of the consideration received or receivable net of refurns and allowaneds, trade discounts and
volume rebates. -laking. into decount contiactually defined termis of payment excluding taxes or duties collected on behali ol the
Lovernment. ‘

The Company operates a lovalty points programme, which aHows customers 1o accumulate points when they purchase products inthe
franchisce stores: The pointsican be redeemed for free products. subject o a certain eriteria

Comsideration receivediis alfocated betwden the products sold and the points issued. with the consideration atiocated 1o the points equal
to their Fair values Fairvalue of the points is determined by applying a statistical analysis, The fiir value of the points issued s deferred
and recognised as'revenue when the points are redeemed.

Interest incoine

For-ull debt instruments méasured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the eflective interest rute:(EIRY. BIR is the rate
thit exuctly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the Tinancial instrument or a shorter
periad, where appropriate; 1o the gross carying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of 'a financial liability, When
caleulating (e BIR, the Compaiy estimates the expected cash {lows by considering all the contragctual terms. ol the financial instrument
{for example. prepayment, extension) but does not congider the expected credit tosses, Inferest income is included in finance income in
the statement of profit or loss.

¢ Faxes
Current income: 1ax

Current income tax assets and Jabilides are mcasured at the aniount expected 10 be recovered [roin or paid 1 the taxation authoritics in
accordance with the Income Tax Act. 1961 enucted in India, The wy rates and tax faws used to compute the amountare those that are
enacted or substantively endcted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax refating 1o items recognised outside the sttement of profit and loss is recognised outside the statement of profit and
loss {either in QCT o in equity). Current Lax ims are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in
equity. Manugement periodicatly ¢valuates positions taken in the {ax retwins with respect to sitvations in which applicable tax
regulations are subjeet to interpretation and éstablishes provisions where appropriate.
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Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Premiom Garments Wholesale Trmliug Private Limited)
Notes tothe financial statemeunts for the vear ended Mareh 31,2018

Deferred fax
Deferred tax is provided using the Tiability method on temporary differences hetween the tax bases ol assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for linancial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax Habilities are recognised forall taxable temporary differences,

Delerred tax assets are recognised for all deductible wmporary dilferences, the carry Torward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised 10 the extent that it is probuble that taxable profit will b available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tas creditg and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the
deferred tax asset reluting 1o the deductible temporary différence wrises from the iniiial recognition of un assel of liability in a
teansaction that is not @ busindss combination and, at the time of the transaction, affeets beither the accounting protit nor taxable profit
or loss.

I assessing the probability the Company considers whether the enlity has sufficient taxable temporary differences relating fo the same
taxation authority and the-ame txable entity, which will restlt in taxable umounts against which the unused tax losxu, or unused Lax
redits con be wilised before they expire

The tarrying amountof deferred 1ax asscis is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no fonger probable that
sullicienttaxable profitawill beavailable to allow all or pait of the deforred tax-assel to be utilised. Unrecognised deférred tax asselsare
re-assessed al cach reporting date and are recognised o the extent that it has become probuble that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred fax asset 1o be recovered.

Defereed 1ax assets und labilities are measured at the lax rates that ave-expected to apply i the yeur when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred s refating 1o items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in other comprehensive income or in squity in
correlation to the underlying transaction.

Deferred tax assets and delerved wx liahilities are offset il a fegally enforecable right exists 1o set ol curfent tay usseéts dgainst current
tax Habilitics und the deferred taxes relate 1 the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

.o Praperty, plant and cquipment

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP). all asscts were carried in the balance sheet at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
deeumudated impairment Josses, ifany. On the date of transition 1o IND AS the Company has-applicd principles of Ind AS 16 Property,
plntand equipment retrospectively from the date of acquisition in respeet ol all tangible assets except land and building which have
been meusured at fair value and sume has been considered ws deemed cost in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of nd AS
as teApil 01, 2015 (date ol transition).

Allitems of praperty, plant and equipment is stated it cost, net of secumulated depreciation and accumulaled impairment losses, if any,
The:costcomprises purchase price, cost of replacing part of thie plait and equipment, borrowing costs if the recognition criteria are met
and directly-attributable cost of bringing the asset to its focation and condition necessary for the intended use. Any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in rriving al the purchase price. When significant parts of plant uid cquipment: aré required 1o be replaced w
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major mspulmn is- performed,
its cosl is recopnised in the carrying amount af the plant and cquipment as o replacement il the recognition eriteria are satisfied. All
other repairand mainienunce cosls are recognised in statement of profitand lossas incurred. The present value of the expected cost for
the decommissioning ol an asset after its use s included in thescost of the respective asset il the recognition criteria-Tor a provision arc
met and it the wmount is muterial,

Aniteny of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initally recognised is derccognised ipon disposal or when no future
ceonamic benefits are expected from s use or disposal. Any gain or kiss arising on derccognition of the assel (caleulated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds wd the careying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the ussetis
devecognised.

Property, plantund equipment under installation or construclion as at the balance sheet date is shown as capital worksis-progress wnd
the relied advances are shown under non-current assets.
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Calvin Klein:Arvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Preminm Gavinents Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes (o the financial statements for the yvear ended Marelr 31, 2018

Depreciation o property. plant and equipment is caleulated on straight-line basis using the rates arvived at based on the uselul] life
estimated by the management. The identified components, if any. are depreciated over their uselu! life-and the remaining assets are
depreciated over the lite of the principal asset,

The management believes that depréciation rates used fairly veflect its estimate-of the usefull lives and residual values of fixed assets,
thougly these rates in certain cases dre different from lives preseribed under Schedule 1 of the Companics Act 2013, The Company has
used the Tollowing estimated uselul lives to provide depreciation on its fixed asscts.

Category ol assets Useful life estimated by management
Furniture & fixtures G years
Office Eguipments Syears
Eleetrical installations 3 years
Leaschold improvements 3§ years or the life based on fease period,
: whichever is fowver
Air Conditioners 5 years
Computers & Accessories 3 yeurs
Vehieles 4 vears

The residual values, useful Hives and methods of depreciation of property; plant and equipment are reviewed at cach financial year end
aitd adjusted prospectively, it appropriate.

g. Intangible assets

Intangible assets aequired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assels are
carvied at cost less aceumulated amortizaton und accumulated impairment losses; i1 any, Internully generated intangible assets,
excluding cupitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in-the Stutentent of Profit and Loss in the
period in which expenditure is incurred.

Theuseful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite,

Intangible assels with finjte lives are amortised over the useful cconomic life and assessed for impairment whenever there’is an
indication that the intangible asset may be-impaired. The amortsation period and the amortisation method for @ intangible asset with a
finite usclul life are reviewed at least at the'end of cach reporting period. Changes in the expected usetul life or the expected patiern of
coisumption of Tuture cconomic benefits embodied in the asset are considered o modify the amortisation’ period or ‘method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on- intangible assets with finite Tives is
recognised in the statement of profitand loss unless such expenditure forms parl of careyving value ol another usset,

Gains or losses arising lrom derecognition 6f an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the vet disposal proceeds and
the careying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the dsset is deréeognised,

On transition to Ind AS, the Campany has elected to continue with the carrving value of all intangible assets recognised as at April 1,
2013 measured as perprevious GAAT and use.that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.

A summary ol amartization policies applied to the Company’s intangible ussets is as below:

Category of assets Useful life estimated by management
License Fees QOver the remaining term of ligense period

or 13 vews whicheveris less
Computer sollware 3 years

h. Borvowing costs

Borrowing costs directdy atributable o the acquisition. conswuetion or production of an #sset that necessarily takes 4 Substantial period
of time 1o get ready Tor its-intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period inwhich they oceur, Borowing costs consist of fnterest wid other costs thatan entity incurs in connection with the borfowing
of funds. Borrowing tosts also include exchange dilferences 1o the exteint regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs,
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Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Premium Garments:Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended Mareh 31,2018

i. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) 4 Icase is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of
the lease. The arrangement is,-or-contains: -« lease i fudfilment of the arrangement is-dependent on the use of a.specific-assel or assels
and the wirangement conveys A right to use the assel or assets, evert i that right is notexplicitly specified in anarrangement,

For wirangements entered into prior to April 1, 2013, the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain fease on the basis
of Tucts and clrcumstances existing on the date of transidon.

Company as @ lessee

A dease is elassified at the inception date as a finance Iease or operating lease. Leases where significant portion of risk:and reward of
ownershipare retained by tho Lessor are clussificd as Operating leases, Operating lease payments_are recognized as anexpense in the
Statement of Profitand Loss on astraight=line basis over five to six years or the Jease period whichever is shorter.

joInventories
nventories are valued at lower of ©ogt dnd net réalisable value. Cost of goods is.ascertained under actual landed cost and is-determined
by specific identification of the individual cost ot inventory.

Netrealisablevalue is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course ol business, less estimated costs of completionand the estimated
costs necessary to make thé sale:

Cost ineludestost of purchase and other costs in bringing the’inventaries o their present location and condition. Cost is determined on

weighted average costbusis.

&

Obsolete and defeetive inventory are duly provided for busis the management estimates.
k. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present-obligation (legal or constructive) dsa result of past event, it is probable that
an outllow of resources embodying cconomicbenefits will be required torseutle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be mude of the
amount ol the-obligation.

11 the effect of the tmevalue of meney is material, provisions are discounted-using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the Hability, When discounting is used, the increase inthe provision duce-to the passage of time s recognised as a
finance cost. These estimates ure reviewed at each reporting date and ddjusted to rellect the current best estimares.

L Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic LPS amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after-deducting preferénte
dividends and wiribulable taxes) by the weighted average number of ¢quity shares outstanding during the period. Theweighted average
number of equity, shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus clement in a rights issue, share
split, und. reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resotrces.

Forthe purpase of caleulating diluted camings per shire, the net profit for the period attributable to-equity- sharchoiders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period twe adjusted for the effeets olall dilutive potential equity shares.

m. Retirement and other employee henefits

) Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme i respect of which the Company' fias no obligation
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund, The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme
as expenditure when on emplovee renders the refated service. 1 the contribution payable o the scheme for service received before the
balunce sheel date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deticit payable to the scheme i reeognized as.a labilityafter deducting the
contribution already paid. 11 the contribution already paid excteds.the contribution due for services received belore the balanee sheel
date, then exvess Ts recognized as an asset 1o'the extent that the pre-paymient wilbdead to, for example, a reduction in-futire puyment ora
cashrefund.
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Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Premium Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes to the financia statements for thevear ended March 31,2018

) Defined benéfit plan
Gatuity tiabilily is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis o an actuarial valuation pn projected unit credit method
mude ot the end ol cach financial year.

Remeasurenients, comprising ol actuarial gding and losses. the effeet of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included i net intevest-on
the net defined bedetit Hability and the returiy on plan dssets (excluding amounts included in net interest on ‘the net defined benefit
Habilin), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with acorresponding debit or credit to retained carings through OCH in the
period in which they oceur. Reméasurements are not reclassilicd to profit or logs in subsequent periods,

Past servicd colts are recognised in the statementof prolit or loss on the carlier of?
- The date ol the plan amendment or custailment, and
- The date that the Company recognises relfated restradturing costs

Nel interest 18 caleulated by applying the discount rate 1o the nel defined benefit Tability or assete The:Company récognisés: the
Tollowing changes in the net defined benelitobligation us an expense in the statlémentof profitand loss:

(1) Serviee costs Comprising current $ervice costs, pust-service costs. gains und losses on curtailments and non-routine seitfements; und
{11y Net interest espense oF income '

¢) Leave encashment/ compensated absence )

Accumulated feave, which is expected 1o-be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employec benefit, The Company
measures the expected cost of such nbsences as the additional amount that it expeets 1o pay as 4 result of the unused entitlement that hds
accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treals accumulited leave expected 10 be caried forwvard heyvond nvelve months, as lobg-tetny employed benefit for
measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for bused on-the actuarial valuation using the projected unil
credit miethod at the yearsend, Adtuinial gains/losses dre immiediately taken 10 the: Statementof Profit and Loss and are¢ not deferred, The
Company presents the entire leave ay o current liability 1 the balance sheety ay it does nothave an unconditional right to defer its
settlement [or 12 months alter the reporting date.

n, Finaneial instruments
A fnanciual instrument is.anyeontract that gives rise to o findncial asset ol one-entity and o financial liability or equity instrument-of
another entity.

Financial ussets

Initial recognition and measurement

All finaneial assets are recognised initially al Tair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded a fair value through profit-or
Joss, transuclion costs that are ativibutable to the acquisition of the financial assel, Purchases or sales of Tinancial agsets that require
defivery of assets within a time [rame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) dre recognised on
the trade date, i.c., the date that:the Campany conmmils to purchase or sell the asset.

.\'H/)S(’(]l{(,’lll measuremend

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assetsare classified in four categorics:

(1Y Debtinstruments at-umortised cost

(1) Debtinstitinents at fir value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH ’
(i1 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)
(iv) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A-debi instrumicat” is mcasured ut the amortised cost i both the following conditions are met:

) Fhe asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

by Contractual lerms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIY on
the principal amount outstanding:

Adter initial measarement, sueh financial assets are subsequently meastred at amortised Cost using the effective interest rate (XIR)
methad. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are un
integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is Included in finance income in the statement ol profit or loss. The losses arising from

impairment ure rccmya' F stitement of profit and loss, This cawegory generally applics to wade and other xt(;c;c.jiwblcs. Formore
gl g
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Calvin Klein Avvind Faghion Private Limited
(formerly Premium Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes to the finacial statenents for the vear-ended March 31, 2018

Debt instrioment at FETOCT

A debtinstrument” is classified as at the FVTOC! If both of the following criteria are mat:
a) The objective 6f the business model is achieved both by collecting contractunl cash flows-and selling the financial assets, and
1) The asseds vontractual cash flows represent SPPE

Debt instruments included Within tie EVTOCH category:are meusured initially as well as-at cach reporting date at fair value: Tairvalue
movements are recogiiized in the othir comprehensive income (OCH. However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses and reversals and Torcign exchange gain or loss in the stutement of profitor loss. On derccognition of the asset, cumulative gain
or loss previously reeognised in OCHis réclassified from-the equity to statement ol prafit or loss. Inferest carned whilst holding FVTOCI
debt instruntent is reported as interest inconme using the HIR method.

Debtinstrument-at FETPL
EVIPL is o residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does nat meel the criteria for categorizaiion as at
amortized cost oras FVTOCH, is classilied as at FVTPL

In addition, the Compiny may ¢lect to designate a- debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCH criteria, as a
EVTPL. However, such clection is allowed only if doing so reduces ot eliminztes @ meastrement or recognition inconsistency (referred
1o as accounting mismateh ). The Company Has not designated any debt instrument asat FVTPL,

ebt instriments incladed within the FVTPL category are measured at fair valu@ with all changes recognized in-the statement of profit
orfoss. ‘

Der¢cagiltion .
A financial asset (dr, where applicable, o part ©f o financiyl asset or part of @ Company of similar financial assets) is primarily
derccognised (Le. ramoved from the Compiny’s balunce sheet) when:

(i) The rights o réeeive cash ows from the assethave expired; or

(D) The Company bas transledred its rights o receive cash flows: from the dssot or hay assunicd an obligation 1o pay the received cash
Hows in full without matersial delay 1o 4 third pary under g ‘pass-throngh™ arrabgement; and either {a)the Company has wanslerred
substantially all the fisks and rewvards of the asset, o (b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantiably all the risks and
rewards of theiasset, bul has trimsferred control of the asset,

When (he Company has transferred its rights Lo receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluntes i and (o what extent it has retained the risks and rewards-of ownership. When it has neither transiored nor retained
substantially ol of the risks und rewards of the asset, nor translesred conirol of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
tansterred usset to the extent of the Company™s conlinuing: involvement, In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liubitity, The transierred asset and the associated liability are measured on-a basis that reflects: the rights and obligations that the
Cuompuny has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of u guarantee over the wansteried asset-is picasured dl the Tower of the orfginal carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum wiount of consideration that the Company could be required 1o repay.

Impairment of financied assels
Hivdecordance with Ind AS 109, the Company dpplies expected eredit loss (ECL) modet for measurenent and recognition of impairment
Ioss on tie Tollowing linancial assets and credil risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are débtinstruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., Toans, debt securities; deposits, trade receivables
and bank batunees

B Financial assets that wi¢ debt instruments-and dre measured as wt FYVTOCI

¢ Loan commitments which are notmeasured as at FVTPL

&) Finaneial guaraniee ¢ontracts which are not measured as at FVAPL

¢} Trade receivables or any contractual vight to receive cash or another financial assct that result from transactions thay are within the
scope of INdAS T and Ind AS 18

1) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17
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Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
{(formerly Premiium Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes to'the financial statements for the vear ended Mareh 31,2018

The Company-Tollows *simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss atlowance on wade receivables.

The application of simpliticd approach does not réquire the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment
Joss allowance based on lifetime ECLs-at each reporting date, right from iis initial recognition.

Far recognition of impairment foss on other finuncial assets and risk’exposure,-the Company determines: that whether there has been a
sipnificont increase in the eredil risk since initial recognition. If credit risk Has not increased significanty, 12-month ECL.is used to
provide for impairment foss. However, if credit risk has increased sipnificantly, lifetime. ECL I8 used. 16 in 4 subsequent period, credit
quality ol the.instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk-since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts o recognising impairment Joss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECH are the expected credit logses resulting from all pussible default events over the expeeted liferof a linancial instrument.
The 12:month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resulls from_default events that are_possible within 12 months afier the
reporting date.

ECL is the difTerence hetween all contractual cash Tlows that are due o the Company in accordance with-the contiaet and all the cash
Nows that the entity expeets 1o receive (Le., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR, When estimating the cash flows, an entity
is required to consider:

(i Al contractual teens of the Tinancial instrament (including prepayment, axtension, call and similur options) over the expected life of
the financial instrument. However, in rare cuses when the expected fife of the fivancial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the
entity s required 1o use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument,

(i) CashiNows frony the saleof collateral held o other credit enhiancements that are integral tothe contractual terms.

CL impairment loss allowance (ov reversal) recognized during the period is recognized us income/ expense:inthe statement of profit
and loss (P&L). This amotnt is reflected under the head “other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheét presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

(i) Financial ussels measured as el amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, Lo, asan infegral part ol the mcasurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amounl, Until the asset meets write=off criteria; the Compuny dots
not reduce impairment allowancee frony the gross carrying amount,

(i) Debt instruments measured at l"\f‘]';()Cl: Sinee linancial assets are already reflected ot fair value, impairment allowance is vot further
reduced from its value. Rather, ECL, amount is presented ay specumulated impairment amount® in the QCL

(i} Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: BCL s presented as a provision in the balance sheet, ieasa Hability;

Forassessing increase in credit risk-and impairment toss, the Company combines Nnancial instrmnents on the'basis of shared creditrisk
characieristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that i designed to enable significant increases in credit risk o beidentitied
ona timely basis.

The Company dots not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCH financial assets, i.c., financial assels which are.credit
impatred on purchasef origination,

Finaucial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement ;

Finandial linbilities are classilied, at initiul recognition. us financial liuhiiitics at fair value through plfo_ﬁi or-loss, loans and borrowings.
or payubles; as uppropriate.

AT financial liabilities are recognised initally at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of diveetly
attributable transaction costs, The Company's Tinancial liabilitics include security deposits, trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bunk-overdrafts.
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Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
(Tormerly Prémium Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes (o the financial statenients for the.year ended March 31,2018

Subsequeni measurement
The measurcnient of Tinancial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recopnition, intérest-bedring loans and borroswings are subscquently measired at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilitics are derecognised -as well-us through the EIR
amortsation process,

Ambrtised cost is coleulated by taking intoraceount any discount or premium on acquisition wid fee or Costs that are an integral partof
the TR, The IR amortisadon is included as finance. costs-in- the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
horrowings. For more information reler note 10.2,

Derecagnifion

A fivancial Yubility is derceagnised when the ebligation under the Habitity is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an existing
findneial Habilite s replaced by mather from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of ancexisting lability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treuted as the derecognition of the original Hability and the recognition of a
pew labifity, The difference’in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the stafement of profitand loss.

Offsetting.of financial insiruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset und the netamount is reported in'the consolidated bulance sheet il there is @ currently
enforceable legal right s offset the recognised amounts and there is an inteation W seutle on a fict busis, w0 realise the ussets and settle
the liabilitios simultaneously,

0. Devivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative Tinancial instriments, such ag forward contracts to hedge its foreigh currency Tisks. Soch-derivative
fnancial instraments dre initially fedopnised at fair value on the date on which o derivative contract is entered-into and are subscquently
re-mcasured at fairsvalue, Derivatives are carried as financial assels when the fair valug is posilive and-as financial liabilitics when the
fair vilue is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fuir value of derivalives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the elfective
portion of eush {Tow hedges, which is fecognised in OCT und tater reclassified o prafit or losg when the hedge item affects profitor loss
or tréated 48 basis adiustment o hedged forecast ransaction subseguently restilts in the recognition ol a non-financial asset or nop-
financial Hability,

p Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cush at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
titee moiiths or Tess. which are subject o an insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash {lows, cash and cash cquivalents consist of cash and short-lerm deposits, as defined above, net
ol outstanding bank overdralls us they are'considered an integral part of the Company’s tash pranagement.

4. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is o possible obligation {hut arises from past events whose existence will be conlirmed by the otcurence or non-
aceurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
beeause it is not probable that an outllow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation, A contingent Tiability alse-arises in
extremiely rare cases whure there s @ liability that cannot be recognized bhecause it tannot be measured reliably, The Company does not
recognize o contingent lability but discloses its existence in the linancial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic bertelits is remote.

o Segment reporting

Idenilfication of segments

The Compuny’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature ol praducts and services provided,
wilhi cach segment representing a strategle business unit that offers different products and serves different markets, ‘The analysis of
geogriphical stgnients is bused on the arcas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate,
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Calvin KleivArvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerty Premivm Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes to the findncial statements forthe vear ended March 31,2018

Segment acconntiigg policies .
The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies: adopted for preparing and presenting, the
financial statements of the Company asa whole:

s Recentaccounting pronouncements

Ind AS 115 -Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind-AS 115 wits issued in February 2016 and establishes a {ive-step model o account [or revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under Ind. AS 115 reveriue is récognised at an amount that reflects the consideration fo which an entity expects o be entitled in
exchange for transterring goods or services 1o a customer. The new revenue standard will supercede all current revenue recopnition
requirements under Ind AS:

Further the newy standard requirés enhanced disclosures abou( the: nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising (rom the entity’s contracts with customers. The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

{1} Retrospective approach - Under this approach. the standard will be applied retrospectively o gach priof feporting period presented in
accordance will Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Aceounting Estimates-and Errors. ‘

(i) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date ol initial application (Cumulative
catch - up-approach)

The effective date Toradoption-of Tnd AS 113 is finuncial periods beginning on o after April 12018, The Company will adopt the
standard on April 1, 2018 by using the cumulative catch-up vansition method and wccordingly compiratives [or-the yearending or
ended March 31, 2018 will not be retrospectively adjusted.

The Company continues, to evaluale various areds sich ag gross versus et révenue presentation for certiin contiets, identifieation and
weatment ol performance obligations associatéd with cerain contractsete, A reliable estimate of the guantitative impact of Ind AS115
on the Haaneial ststementsawill only bé possible onee the implementation project has been Comipleted.
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Culvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Lintited
(!mmul\ Preaiin Garments. Wholeside I'mdm;, Privite L mulul)
Nate 15 the Toaneid ststenents for the veur eaded Mhrel 31,38

Note 3: Property, plast and viaipment
(R i lakhs}

Finenitore and {Ofice Elecieieal Leasehokd . Vs Computers sinid v P
. . . . Al conditioners o Vehicles Total
lixtures equipment instadlations mprovements ACCeNRHPICA

Cuost
AN AL April 12018 72103 61,98 {0152 491,60 RIR 13193 340 1.568.18
Additions 27168 .30 397 108.48 - 2.7 - 39720
Phoaposals deletions 17183 1374 808 492 - 2232 5,40 27338
Axat Mareh 31,2017 830,98 48,84 07417 s5106 7 S1.68 12238 ‘- 169262
Adilitipny tio.51 34 1268 FE9T g 1571 t8.00 28231
Onposadst detenany d 862 o2 2810 17.50 1.85 - 130233
Asout Mireh 31, 2018 43,16 10814 57482 41.23 . 136,24 18.00 184418

P G
Depreciation
At Aprit 13016 152,77 20,95 38,68 HETT 1410 b n3l 243 2941
Deprectation tur hg yewr 22095 1628 2637 s 134 4793 .20 BI85
Dhsposalsd defetions 9723 §.47 7.4 3892 - 1503 2.63 168.9:4
As i Mavel 31,2017 31229 218,26 58,49 o7 256,565 27.51¢7 60,11 .. 742.82
Depreviutivn for thetvede [EERES t 2309 134.57 12,64 35.60 [ER 320
Digposds! delenons @15 559 (.93 Ji83 LA [RE - 7362
ASAMaeh 31 308 45031 33,72 8033 J33.28- 27,93 94,62 131 1048440

T Y - i - .
Net bookvalue )
Asar Maith 31,2007 508,69 20028 3 294,50 24,14 63,27 - 949,20
Ay nt March-31, 2018 473.28 9,44 27,91 284 1330 41,62 16.69 TO8IH
Note, Also reler to fote: 280 for disclosare of contractustd ¢ nents for the sequisian of property, plant and cqu_ipmcm
Note 45 bitgugible assets .
(R, 0 lakhs)
Gaothwill License fée Compuier
sofwire Tutd

Cont
Asat April 12016 15.00 ‘ 163.87 181.87
Additions E - 2964 2064
Disposats’ delelons- - . 1958 1958
Asal Masch' 3, 2007 18.00 - 173,93 191,93
Adddiions a2 ey 71422
Dispusitls’ deletions < & - -
As ot March 31,2088 tR.00 T14.23 173,93 MGG
Angetisation and Hnpaieatent
Asar A prl 12006 . . 42,50 42.50
Abnestiarion forthis sear - < 07 5607
lmp.nnnud T gl [RRTE . B 1§60
Digposals deletions. - - 1732 1752
Asat \l«\nll.]l‘l(llz 18.00 - . -81.08 99,65
Antstusation fhe the year . - SRR 4844
Dspasals? deleniong . “ . .
As ot N aeeh 382008 18.00 - 134,09 148.0a9
Net bk vidue
A b Mool 31,2087 . - 92,28 92.28
Asat Maeeh 31, 2018 - 714,33 43,84 788,07

Note $it lnpuirnwent testing of goodwill

Cioudawilt acaured rau bustoess combinations hids been Wlocated s thd husiney
Ax aresult of wsnagement an Jthe Company recognised an smpatrinent chie
Sratement of profit wed foss of thit year

1 whole for |.ngummcf\l (g and the catrving oMol Wi Rs, 18 Jakhi as on April [, 2015,
el R 1S Eakh i the francisd year ending March 310 2007 agmnst-goodwl- The tmpsiioment charge 1§ recorded in the

Netedhi 1 feise Fee
Ot Magehi 23,2

"mdm 1s fora o

SR, e Clhampany hiss entered o an addendhna to the heen

grecents-dined Bedember 1, 2005 and Mareh 19, 2003 with Catvin Klein lne., 1o adid centain plmlm! ewegories 0 licensed
sderirtton ul K. 71023 ok i fequvatent 1o UST U U Mhong sy bich s been capnabised as i intingsble ssel, in accordange with Ind & 38, “tntangible Assets”, i }uuuu Agredment o
it the Conpany 3 heense Lo ove spproved forn of trademarks ug connvetion with ihe manulacture; sale, dlismbution and pramiotion of the Calbin Klein licensed products in (ndia:

al sormy of hicensu sh:LH aud on Decentber 312121 However; the s vai beéteneswed For d Tuither period of T0vears Withaut iy additimal cansidération; sulyedt 1o camplisnce with ccx'.;unklcnns and
confiions pided the storesaisd sgreemen NMaagemont has deteroimed thit it virually éertain that thie Cafipisny wankd revew tie license ireement foi s further pefiod of 10 yews: Accordingly, the Conpeiny
15 snontasieg the raderik lwenge few wver rensnining e of license agrecment Dinchiding sentival persad) ull Degcembir A, 2033

<;};gf xi\r \
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Calvin Klehi Arvint Faskion Private Limited
(formerty Premivm Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes to the financial stalenicats-1or the year cuded Marech 31, 2018

Note 30 Financha] nssets

Note 810 Seenrity depiosit

Security deposit
Unsecurwd, considered good

Mareh 31,2018
R, in Jakhy

Maveh 31,2017
Rs, in fakhs

153.84 99.24
Unsecured. considered doubtiul 32.56° 32.56
186.40 131.80
Provision for doubtful deposits {32.56) (32.56)
153.84 9924

Note 8.2: Teadereceivables

Trade receivables
Receivable Trom refated parties {refer note.26)

Brealéup for seécurity details:

Unsecured, considered good

March 31,2018
Rs, intakhy

Marchi31,2017
Rs.in lakhs

3474.63,

2.200.73
26,93

3,474.65

2.227.68

March 31,2048
Ry, in likhs

Mareli 31,2017
Ry, i lakhs

3,474,635 2.227.68

Ungecured, comsidered doubtitul S44.43 54443
4,019.08 2,772.11
Inpaiement Allowance (atlowance for bad and doabtiul debts) (‘544,43) (344.43)
3,474.65 2,227.68

Nufes:

4 Nu irade or ot receivibles are que from diteciors or other oflicers of the Company cither-severally or joinily with any other/person nor any trade or other
receivable e due Trom firms or privine companivs respectively in which any director is 3 partner, o director or a member.

b Trade reedivables are non~interest boaring and are generally on eredit terms o 30 to 90 days.
¢ Fortenns and conditions relating w related party receivables, refernote 26.

Note 5.3: Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
= Oncurrent gecounts

March 31,2018
Rs, in Jakhs

March 31,2017
Rs, in lakbs,

43,19 1212
- Deposits with origisal maturity of fess than three months - 206000
43.19 212,12

==

For the purpese of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

flatancds with banks
=On Current accounis

Narely 31,2018
Rs, in fakhs

Maveh 31,2017
Rs. 0 Lakhs

43.19 1212
- Deposits with origingl matirity of less than three osiths - 200,00
43TV pA P8 P
7
Note 840 Other bank halances
Non-current Current
March 31,2008 Mareh 31,2017 AMareh 31,2048 March 31,2017
Rsin lakhs Ry, in-dakhs R dn Inkhs Ry, in lakhs
Other deposits (refer noted below) 10,90 1.00 1.00 166.57
10.90 1.00 1.00 166.57
Amaunt disclosed ondey "Othier financial asseis” - note 1.5 10,90y (1.00) - -
- - 1.00 166.57

Nofes:

4. Under Tron with bank as securay for poaraniée facility to the Excise Départment [Re. Nil (March 31, 2017 - Rs, 156,73 lakiy} and Sales Tax Depariment

JRs. 1190 kikh (March 31,2017 < 1084 tukby],
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Calvin Kiein Avvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Premivm Garments Wholesale Trading Privite Limited)
Notes o the financial statements for the yenr ended Maveh M, 2018

Note 3.3: Other Buancial assets

Notiscirrent

Curent

Murch 31,2018

Ry, in lakhs

March 31,2017
R, in {akhs

Mareh 31,2018,
R, in ks

March 31,2007
Rs, in lakhs

Unseeured, cansidered good
Other bank batances
Accrued interest on bimk deposits
Loans 16 eniployies
Others

13:90

100

Carried st fair value
Dervative instnients

Break-up of fiancial assets carvied at amortised cost:

Sevurity deposit (note:5.1)

Trade recetvables {note 3.2)
Cushoand cash equivalemts (noe 5.3)
Other bank balances {note 5.4}
Others hinaneial assets (note 5.5}

Break-up of Mnancial assets carvied at fair value:
Others financial assets (note 3.5)

Note'6: Other assets

- - G:80- 4.79

- - 3.88 320

- . - (.40

10:90 .00 4.68 8.39

- . 11.70 .
1090 1,00 16,38 839

Mareh 31,218 Mareh 31,2017

Rs, in hikhs R in lakbs

153.84 99,24

3474.65 222168

4319 212012

1.00 166,57

1558 9.39

31,684.26 2,715.00

1170 .

1170, -

Non-current Current
March 31,218 Mavch 31,2017 March 31,2018 March 31,2017

Ry, i dakhs

Rs, bt fakhs

Rs. in lukhs

R, it lakhs

Uinseciréd, cansidered good
Capital wdvances
Deterred rent off fccount of fairvaluation ol security deposit
Prepaid expenses
Employes advanies
Advanies o supphiers
Balances with statutory? government-authorities
Other advanees

Unsecured, considerad doubtlul
Advances 1o suppliers
Other advanees

Provision Tor doubtiul advimees

235y .81 - ~
. . 328 -
. . 5344 2336
. - 41.40 16.78
. . 48,69, 3717
. . 231818 466.89
. . 4203 .
23.59 0.81 250602 54620
. - 6054 6054
- - 4800 4800
N N 108.54 108.54
. - {108.54) (108.54)
23,39 0.81 2.506:02 54620

Note 92 Tiventories (valued ot lower of cost aud net readisablevilue)

Traded goods [including stock-in=teansit Rs, 58,98 Jukh, (March 31, 20172

Note? During the yveir ended Mureh 31.20180Rs §.324.48 lakh (March 31, 20170Rs.

et realisable value:

Rs.

35587 Lok
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March 31,2018
Rs. it lakhy

Marel31, 2017
Ry, in lakhs'

822304

3,677.82

5,223.14

567782

320°36 lakhy was recognised as an-expense for inventories carried at




Cabvin Kiein Avvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerty Premium Garments Whaolesale Tvading Privae Limited)
Nates to the financial statements Tor the year euded March 31,2018

Nate 8: Equity share capital

Mareh 31,2018 Mareh 31,2017
No. of shares Rs, in lakhs No.-of shares Rs. in fakhs

Authorised share-capital
[iquity shares ol Rs. 10 each 2.000.000 200.00 2,000,000 200,00

2,000,600 200.00 20000060 200.60
Issued, subseribed and paid-up share eapital
Equity shares of R$. 10 cach 1.009.296 100.93 934,022 93.40

1,009,290 100,93 934,022 93.40

Sharesissucd during the year (on rights basis)

a) On uly 20, 2017, the Company issued 37.383 equity shares of Rs: 10 cach at a premium of Rs. 2.665.00 per share on right basis in the ratio of
ane share per every 24.99 shiarcs alvcady held, 1o theexisting shiveholders.

by On January 24, 2018, the Complany i
one share per every 23,64 shares already held, to the-existing sharcholders,

sucd 37.891 equily shares of Rs, 10 each at a premium of Rs:72,629.13 per share on right basis in the'ratio of

8.1 Fermy/ rightgatinehied to the equity shaves

The Company hns one class of equity’ shares having face value of ReA0 cachi. Each sharcholder is entitled o one vote pershare held, The Company
declares and pays-dividends i Indinn Rupees: Inthe event of liquidation of the Gompany.,: the hotders of equity ‘shares will betentitled o rective
femaining assetg-of the Company alter distribution of all preferential amounts: The digtribution will be in propottion to the number of equity shares
hicld by the sharcholders: '

8.2, Reconcllialion of slares vutstandingat (he Yeginning and at the end of the veporting period

March 31,2018 Muarch 31,2017
No. of shares Rs. in fakhs N, of shares Ry, in lakhs
Althe beginning of the year 934,022 9340 600,622 60.06
Add: Issiic ol shures during the year 75274 7.53 333,400 33.34
Qutstanding at the end of the year 1.009,296 100.93 934,022 93.40

§.3. Detnils of shaveholders holding move than % shates in the Company:

Muarch 31,2018 Mareh 31,2007
Nu. ol shares Y of sharcholding No. of shares % of sharcholding
Arving Fashions Limited (loit Venture Partner {rom 504,648 30% 457,671 49%%
November 4L 2010)
PVH Singapore Private Limited (loint Venture Partner) S04.648 RO 476,331 31%

Note 9: Othier cquity
Mareh 31,2018 Marel 31,2017

Ryt ks Rsin lakhs
9.8 Share premivm:
Batancc.as perlast finuncial sitements 8.080,18 6.113,12
Chunges during the year 1.992.46 1.967.06
Balaaceat the ¢nd of the year ) 14,072.64 8,080.18

Nt Share prémium reserve is used o record the prémium on issu of shaves, This reserve is ulilised inaccordance with the provisions of the

Compunices Act, 2013

9.2: Retained earnings:

Balanecas per last financial statements (5.8!\'8.80) (4,661,40)
AddzPronvdossy for the year (631.29) (123137
Addy Other comprehensive (ldss) / income fur the year (12.84) 3.97
Balance at the end of theyear {6,532.99) {5.888.80)
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Catvin Kicin Arvingd Fashion Peivate Liinited
(foemerly Preatum Garments Whaolesale Trading Private Limited)
Notds 1o the finaneial statéments fov the vear ended Mareh 31, 2018

Nate V0 Financlad Habitities

Note WL L Security degiosits feom customers

Sccurity depasits fFam customers

Note 10,20 Barrowings

Effective interest
rate (V)

Short-tevm borrmwings {secured)
Warking capilal Toan from bank
Oveidralt Geiity from bank

Buver's credit arrangement fom bank

Notes:

Reler Nate below
Reler Note bejow

Refer Note bekiw

Maveh 33,2048
Ry: n takhs

March 3, 27
R indakhs

1.303.39

110,76

1.303.39

1,109.76

Maturity March 31,2018

138, in nkhs

Narel 31,2017
Rg, in fakhs

90 days 3.200.00 1,500.00
Repavable o 1.055:59 166544
denund
Maxin tenor ol - 1,795.18
180 days
4,285,589 4,961,19

a. The Company hitg obtained o Borrowing facility with o combined Hinit o Rs. 6,500.00 lakl (March 31,2017 Rs 5,300.00 1k fronta bk which cad b iséd towiards

working

capital Toan, cash credit {overdrait) ey, buvery’ credit wreangeinent gic. The elfective interes

rate for the working enpital facility s 8819 (March 33,2017

Q.80 for overdeaft tacility s MCLR subjeet to fluctuation arBank's diseretion (March 31, 2017 MCLR plus 2%) and buyer’s eredit carry divinterestrate ol LIBOR plus

4 basiy puints (March 31, 2017: LIBOR plas 4 basis points),

b, The whove working capitat oanfoverdraft and buyers’ eredit facility from bank-are secured by (i) first exclusive charge over current ossets of the borrawer for Rs: 6,500
fakh, both present & future; (i) Corporate Guarnniee from PVH Corp., USA Tor 50% ol'the exposure and (i} letter of comfort frony PVH.Carp., USA for R8.6,950 Jakh,

o Refer note 31 for Hguidity risk,

Note 1035 Trade pavables

‘

Trade padables
Trude payables toyelated parties (refer note 264

Nees:

w T
b Ko terms aind condstions with refated partivs, refer note 200

Mavel 31,2018
Rs, in lakhs

March 31,2007
R Inkhs

1,393.62

Q8¥A2

131041 2.975.07
290403 396349

¢ pavables are geatrally son-interest bearing except i cise of pvefdud pavmenss dand are nonally settied as per credit fenng vanving between 30:9G'days,

e The disclosures with regard 1o Micro, Smalland Mediun Enerprises Development Act {s based on the infornition collected by the manggeiinent based onenguires made
with the Lreditors which have beenveelied upon bi-the duditors. At Mareh 31, 2018 and Mareli 31, 2017, there swere no partics iegistered tider the said Act

Nate Hds Other Tincial liabilities

Carvied at smoretised cost
Pavable for capital supphivs” services
fnterest acerued but not due o borfowings

Curried at fair value
Dorivistive ingirument

Braakaup of Mivancial Habililies caveied at amortised cost:

Sdeurity deposits rony custamer (nofe 10,13
Barrowings (note 10.2)

Tride payables (note 10,3}

Other financial tinbiities (note 10.4)

Brvak-up of finsicial Habithics carvied at fair value:
Ot financial Habilities (note 1.4y
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March 31, 2018
Rsin lakhs

Marel 31,2007
SR, in lakhs

56,16 210.60

9.23 6734

6541 217.34

- 67,76

65,41 285,10

Mareh 31,2018 Maureh 31,2017

RS, i lakhs

‘Rs.in Takls

1,302.39

1109.76

4,255.59 196119
290403 396349
65414 217,34
8,528.42 10,251,78
- 67,76

- 67,26
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Cadvin Kiein Avvind Fashijon Private Limited
(formerly Premium Gaements Whotestle Trading Private Limited)
Nates o the Ouancial vtatements forthe year ended March 35 2018

Note FH Provisions

Non-carrent Current

March 31, 2018 Muareh 31, 2017 Mareh 31,2018 March 33,2017

Peavision far eniplayee benefits (refer note 24) Rs. inlakhs R, in fakhs Ry, in lakhs 135 i Jakhs
Provision for leave encashuinent . - 8119 7322
Provision for gratily 89.03 5745 9.76 1.99

Provision for titigation 7 dispute (refer note below) - 20000 -
§9.03 §7,45 292,98 78,21

Note: Provision for litigation ¢ dispute represems provision made in respect of claims against the Conpany for ngoing tax dispute.

Note F2oOther enrrent Habilities

Advaned froni custuingrs

Suiutory dues {refer note a betaw)

Delerrad income on accotan ol fir valugtion of s¢Curity deposits from castomers
Delived Hicoiie of loyally: program reward pointé {refer ware b below)

Motk @ Undispated stationy dues are settied i nést month

Note b 2 The Company has deferred the revenue refited to the customer iyalty program reward points

{This spude has beeii mieationally loji hlankj

210f33

March 31,2018

Rs.in Jakhs

Murely 31,2017
Rs. in hiklis

17.35 0.95
20314 134.62
59,38 370
98,00 80.00
464,87 246,27




Calvin Klein Avvind Fashion Private Limited
{formerdy Feeminm Garments Whelésale Teading Private Limited)
Notes 1o the fmntcind statenienis for the veae ended March 31, 2018

Nate 13: Revenue from opeprations

Sale ol peoduces
Interest income on finangial liabilites atmmortised cost

Totat Revenue
Nute {42 Other intome

Exchange Biffercuce (Nety

Liatfity no tanger required, weitten back
Other son-operating income

Sale o serap

I’z

Miselandaus income

e s on finsncial instranents Gt e valud throuph profit orloss

Note 8 Finanee fcome

Tritdrest o depsosit with brinks
Thilerest meome o Tinancial 1ssits a1 unonised cost

Interest nicome « olliers

Nite 1o: Purcliases of traded goods

Paichasies of traded goods

Note 171 (Inevease) decrease io iiventories of teaded goads

bivemories w the beginning of the yeur

boventories i the enid of the year
{Increase) deercase in inventories

fess:

Note 18: Emjilayee henefity expense

Satares, wages und bovus

Contibation 1o provident and other Tunds
Grataity expense (veler note 249

Sttt wtfare

Note 19: Depreciation and amaortization expense

Depreciation of Gingible assats (refer note 3y
linpuiivmient of goedwill (refer dote 4y
Amartization of other iatangible assets frefer note 43
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March 31,2018
Re.in Iakhs

Mareh 31,2017
Rs. in lakhs

1354551

22:34

12,924.97

12,96

13,507.85

12,934,73

Mareh 31, 2018
Re, in fakhs

March 31,2017
Recin fakhs

. 107.95
53010 .
021 157
946 -
242 10.21
641.28 119.73

March 31,2018
Rs, in fakhy

Mareh 31,3017
R i lakhs

36 1354
116 -
- 0.11

370 13,63

March 31,2018
R, in fakhs

Maveh 31,2017
R, in lakhs

4,945,343

10.317.93

4,945,33

HL317,93

March 31,2018
Hs. i takhg

Miireh 31, ;()I7
1S, i lakhs

R.677.82 6:037.01
522014 B,677.82
384,68 (2,640,813}

Narch 31,2018
Rs.dn fakhy

March 31,2017
R, in ks

1,089.42 1.513.72
168.43 136.19
32.76 26,10
116,73 87,32
1,407,34 1,763.33
March 31,2018 NMarch 31,2017
K. in fakhs W, in lakhs
376.20 48285
- 15,00
4844 56,67
424:63 587.42




Catvin Klein-Arvind Fashion Private Limited
tmnerly Preminm Garments Wholesale Trading Private-Limited)
Notix 1o the Fosaeiat statenionts for (he v ended Mareh 31, 2018

Nate 20 Finance costs
Mareir 31,2018
Rs, in lakhs

March 31, 2017
R, in lakbs

Intcrest
oy bank: Borrowings 43404 27190
wit seeurity deposit reecived from customers 81,22 73.61
on overdue payments ' - 152,15
on financial Habiities measures a4t wmortised cost 15.65 13003
others 207 8.14
Bank charpes 77.60 81.20
Other bagraswing costs - 9.4
610,58 619,55

Note'21: Othir expenses )
Mareh 31,2018
Rs. in lakhs

March 31,2017
R, lakhs

Reut (refer note: 250 26730 30429
Advertisensent and pablicily 628,04 431,75
‘Fraveling ind cooveydned expenses 155.9% 218.07
Pavking peterial cansimed 7783 20,99
Freight, insurance and tlenrivg chirges 14749 10295
Rovalty vii sales 1,146.58 195393
Poswer aud Tuct 5.99- 491
Shared serviees expense 303074 66910
Foreigh c.\ciiun;gu Huchtions; et 5233 =
Oulsotireed services 1302 1481
Octrol 3278 11086
Lewal and professionat fees 117.55 11,59
Repairs and maintenanee .
~Ruilding 4.67 6,18
“Othiers 8551 3L66
Printing, stabionery & communication 2991 24.20
fnsurnes 32,34 4788
Pavimenits 1o anditors {refer bolow fordelails) 32.60 3470
Rates wf taxes 3742 2906
Coninssion, brikerage and discounts 3644 7582
Housekeeping charges 1124 2230
Praperty, plant i equipmientwritten off 56713 9533
frovision Tor doubtiul sdvances - 3688
Fai vatie logs on iioncial instruments at fair vilue tivngh prolit or loss - 58,30
Miscellancons expenses 87.12 6194
4,002,061 367190

Mavch 31,2018
Ry, in lakhs

March 3t 2017
R, in fakhs

Payment to naditor

Statutory puidit fees . 27.50 25.00
Tax audit fees 160 325
Reimbrariement of axpoises (including service 1ax) 150 6,45

33.60 3470

Note22 s Enrning per share
Mareli 31,3018

Mareh 31,2017

Earing por share (Rasicand Dituted)

Nel Toss for éaleutation of basic and diluted EPS - Rs, in lakhs (63.29)
Total i of eqiity shires at the end Of the year 1,009.296

Weighteil sverape number of cquity shares

Forbasic 967,004
For difuted EPS 867,001
Nomim viie of equity shards < Ry, 10
Wakic varning per share - Ry {65.28)
Dituteil estening per shure « Re, {65.28)
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(123137
934422

$00.662
£00,662
10
(153.79)
(153.79)




Calvin Klein Arvingd Fashion Peivate Limited
ale Trading Private Limited)
Notes ta the finandial stagements Tor the vear ended Maveh 31, 2018

{Formerty Preminm Gurments Winles

Nute 23: Significint accounting judgements, estimates and assumptiony

The preparation of tie Company's findocial stalements requires nianagement 1o make judygements, estimates and asswinptions that affeet the veported wnounts af revenues,
EXpenses Uncertnly about these nsstamplions and estimates could vesalt- i
15 or Habilites ptfected i futore periods,

| agsits, labilitics, the accompiinving diclosures and the disclosure df cantingeat liabil

Suteomes il require @ mitetial adjustiment 1o the carrying amonnts of ass

The hey assumptions concerning the future wnd other key saurces ol estintating uncertuinty at the reporting date, that Have o significant rigk of cansing ¥ inargrial adjustinent to
seribed below. The Company based ig assumplions and estimates an paramelers available
wptions about future developments, however, may chauge due 1o warker changes or
ave reflected in the assunptions when Hhey oceur.

e vannying amotsts of assets:and Habntities withinthe next fancial year, are &
when the Bnaiicial -suitenonts were prepared. Existing circumstances and
Citeumstiices arising thatare bevond the control of the Company. Snch changes

taspairment of non-financinl assets

bapaimment e whin the earrying value of ai agset or cash penerating uhil exededs its recoverable amount, wihich s the highicr of it [nir vadue Tesy cos 5 of disposal and its
vihie i s, The fair value 1ek§ casts of disposal calcalation is based on available dita from binding ‘sales transactions, conducied -at aom’s fengtly, for similar assets or
‘ohistrvable market prices less incremental costs Tor disposing of the asset. The vadue it use caleatation is based on DCF model, The cash flows are derived from the bidget for
the next five-years and do ot include restracturing activities that the Compaay is not yet commitied to or significant future investinents that will entiance the ussers performanice
of the CGU being tested. The récoverable winount 1§ sensilive to e discount rite used for the DOF model as well 5 e expected fiftire cash=mflows and the growth rate used
or extrapolation purposes. These estintates are mosl relevant 1o itangibles with definiienseful Hves recognised by the Company.

When the recoverable amonntof the CGU is less than its carcying amount, g0 lmpz\yinncm foss 18 recognised.

Fair value messurenient of findnecial instruments

Wihictt the fair vilues of fiancial asscts and linancial labilities recorded i the bilance sheet cannot be mcasired based an quoted prices in sietive: niarkets, el fair value is
measured using valuation techniques ineluding the DCE model. The npiis o these models are sk Fom absersable markets where ]{ ssible, bt where this is not feasibie,a.
degree of pidgement s réguied i ¢stablishing fair vilues. Jadgements include considerations ofinputs such as ligaidityrisk, credit rigk and volatiliy. Changes in assumptions
aboutl these factors could aftect the féparted fair value of Bnancisl fnstruments.

Delined benefits plans (sratuity. benelits)

The cost of e defined benefit gratuity plan amd the pregent valite of he grataily obligation dee deienined LAy st
various nssamptions that may differ fronvactal diselopmventsin tie Fanre. These include the dutenmiration ol the dis
1o the complexities

ial valuations. - An actianal valvation involves makiug

somit rte, future walary ihcreases and mortality rares. Due

Hvolved i e vateation and its fong-termy aatire, a defined benelit obiigation i highly seosinve 10 chianged i these asstmptions. Al assuinptions :are

reviowesd i each reponting date.

Thi parimncter modt subyeet W change is i discount rate. Tn determining the apprapriate discount rade for plans, the nanagement.considers the-interest sites of government
Bionds 11 cirrencies consiadnt with the carrencies of the post-employment benelit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly avadable mortality lables for. India.. Those
mortality lables tend o change only ut interval i response 1o dentopraphic changes. Finure saliwy incrénses and grataity increases are based on expected Tatuse inflation rates,

Fiher detatls abomt pratity obligations are given insote 24

Proavision on inventory

Thie provision en tnveniory is hased on poliey, futire expectation, inventory seasons and current realisable vatue offthe materials’ depending on the categony of godds. Histord al
data 15 uxed 1o make Hhesd estmates,

Provision on recéivablesand advances/deposits
The Company las defined policy for provision of veceivables whiclt is/based on ageing and reéonicitiaions with he ciistomers on @ periodic basis: The Compeny reviews (hie
pashiey at regular intervads 10 ensure the applicability of the same in the changing seenario,

Revenue recoznilion = foyalty programme
The Company-estimates the Tair vabug of points awarded wader stragtured Tovatty progranime by making assumptions abine expected redemption rates, the wax of praducts ey
will heayaitable fortedemption i tie future and customer prefetences,
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Catvin Klein Aivind Fushion Private Limited
(formerty Preminm Garments Whalesale Trading Private Limited)
Nates 1o the financial statements for the veay ended Mireh 31,2018

Note 24 Gratuily snd other post employment benelit plans

i Company provides Tor grataity for einployess in Indiv as par the Payment of Gieattity Act, 1972, Employees whiy e in continnons service fur a period of § years are
Cligible tor yramity. The amount of gratuity” payable ob retiremeot? tenmiination is the coiployess kst drawn safary per dionth compited proportianately. for 15 days salaiy

mudtiplicd for the nemberof compléted years of sérvice,

The foltowing tables summarise the vamponeats of net benefit expense recopnised iy the sttament of profit und foss and the funded siatus and timounts recopnised in-the

balance shiogt far the respeetive plans:

Mirch 31,2048
s, in lakhy

Marely 31,2017
Ry, in fakhs

a. Amouals vecopnisad i Employee benefits expense in the Statement 6f Profitiind Lossin respect of gratuitys

Currestseevice eosl 2844 22.92
ferest.on delined beaelicobligiions (DBO) 432 kAL
Net pratuity cost . 3276 26,10

b: Cluinges in the present value of DBO and fai vilue of plin assets:
March 31,2018
2§, in lalihy

March 31,2017
Rs.in Inkdis

Clhringes in present vitlue of the obligation:

Opaning DBO 5944 40,33
Current service ¢ost 28:44 22092
fnterest on DBOs 432 ERE]
Actuariah gainloss) reesgnised in OCT 12.84 {397}
Benefits piid {6.25) {3.02)
Closing DBO 98.79 39,44
€ Amounts recognised B the Dalance Sheets

March 3120180 March 31,2017

Rs. in lakhs

Ry, 1t Jikhg

Present valiie of the DBO a1 the end of the yeat: 98.79 $9.44
Fair value OF plan assets . .
Net linbility 98,79 59,44

. Net Habilitg is bifureated as Talows:
Currett 9.76 1,99
Now-current $0.03 5745
98,79 59,44

¢ The principal assumprions ased in determining gratity (unfonded) DBOs for e Company sire shown below?

Mareh 312018

Afarch 31, 2017

Digeount 1t 7400
Saliwy escalition rate 10.00%
ANEILON Tty 20.00%

7A0%
5.00%
7.00%

The ‘estinsates of Titure salary mergase. considered in setirial valuation. take accoun of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply“and

denind in the emplovinent market.

£, Quuntitalive sensitivity analysis for significantussunmption is as follows:
March 31, 2018

March 31,2007

s, in fakhs Rs. in lakhs
sitivity fevel:

Discaunt rate 0.5% iterease 0.5% decrease 0.8% incrense 0.3% deercise
et on DBO (1.72) 0.38 83y 319
Satary esealation rate 0.5% increase 0,5% decrease (520 increase 0.8% decrease
lmspact o DBO 23 {223y 247 (2A3)
Atteition rate Py increase 1% deirease 1% increase 140 decrease
Tmiiact on DBO (1.69) 1.37 (0.67) ti

This sensivity soalyses ubiove Tave been determingd based oies method that extriapolates thi inipact en DBO us a resul of reasownble. changes i key assumptions

weewsibig s the end of the reporing period
The methods and tpes of axsumptions used in preparing e scasitivity analysisdid not change compared with thiprevious périod,
1w The fellawving paynients areeapected conteibutions to the defived beaelit plan in future years:

Mireh 31,2018
Ry it lakhs

March 31,2017
R, in lakhy

Witlsin ‘thie next 12 nioiths (nexty asnual veporting period) 236 1.99
Froni 2 1o § years 9296 3853
Bovond 3 years . 176.11 115.89
Tutal expected payments 278.83 183,41

The dverage dutation of the defined benelit plan obligation atthe end of the veporting peried 50 vearg (Mareh 31,2007 1 years),

h, Befined benefit and contribution plans:
Amdunt recogrised as aivexpense und included innote 18 as "Contabution to provident and other Tusids™
Murch 31,2018
Hs. in faklie

March 31,2047
Rs. in dakhs

130.47

136,19

1347

136,19
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Calvin KleinArvind Pashion Private Limited
(formerly Premivin Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for-the year ended March 31, 2018

Note 25: Commitments and contingencies

# Leases
Operating lease commitments as lessee

Rent expenses include Jease rental payments:towards office and warchouse premises. Sueh leases are penerally For o period o 2 10-6 years with
options of renewal againstinéreased rent and premaltire termination of 1104 months. Lease rent expenses debited to the stutement of profitand

Joss is Re,:267.30 lakh (Marcly 31, 2017 Rs. 301.29 kikh),

Futuve minimum rentals payable under non-cancéllable operiting leases arve as lollows:
Within ong year

Aller one vear but nol more than five years
Nlore than five years

by Capital and plhier convmitnrents
Estimated amotint 0f contracts rentaining 10 bé exeeuted on ¢apital accotnt and not

provided Tor(net of advancesy:

¢ Contingent liabilities not provided for

Mareh 31,2018
R, infakhs

Mareh 31,2017
Rs, in lakhs

4.85

22.50

4.85

22.50

March 31, 2018
R, inlakhs

March 31,2017
Re:in takhs

3541

Nareh 31,2018
Ry, in lakhy

5137

March 31,2017
Rs.in lakhs

L Claims against the Company not acknewledged as debts:

Matters reliting o Valoe Added Tax (Refer nole a) 747.86 -

Matlers relaiing to Customs Duty ¢laims {Reter note b) 513.82 e

Matters relating (o Indome Tax under dispute (Refer note ¢ 9.59 9.59
1,271.27 9.59

The contingent fiabilities, i materialiscd, shall entirely-be borne by the Company, as there is no likely reimbursement from any other party,

Note u: Subsequent 1o yearend, the Company has received demand notice /s SW2) ol the Dethi Value Added Tax Act, 2004 for the.financial
vear 2013204 from the Department of Trade & Taxes, Government of NCT of Delhi with respect (o assessment carried out es-parte due 1o non-
submission of C-Form and F-Form wnd failure to attend the assessment hearings at the Departvient offict on various dates,

This Company s in the procss of Tiling its reply against demand notice and is confident that all requisite documents required by the Department
10 avail the exemption £ congessional rate of 1 on-sale / stoek ansfers made during the aforesaid financial year are available,

Note b The Company has reecived demand cum show cause notice under seetion 2804 read with section 124 v the Customs Act, 1962 by the
Directorate of Revenue Intelligence (DRI, for short payment of duty due 10 not-inclusion of cendin payments -vendor for determining the
assessable vatue Tor payient of Customs Duty.

The Company is. confident that it's position will likely be upheld in the appeliate process apainst the-above demand. Fowever, the:Company has
deposited Rs. 42,03 fakh under protest.

Note ¢ The Company had received an order w's Y2CAGY of the lncame Tax Act, 1961 for Assessment Year 2013-14 for the computation of
arivs lengur price’in relation to internalional wansactions. As per the order-of the Transfer Pricing Officer, an upward adjustment of Rs, 35.71
Lakh Awas Wade ot incorie of the Comipany, Further Penalty Proceedings under-section 271(1)(¢) were separately initigted for furiishing of

inuccuraté partivatars of ihcome, The Company had feceived denand order under séetion 156 of the Income tax Act; 1961 dated February 06,
200 7.0f Rs, 9,59 takh,

Besides the Company Tias also received an order ws 92CA(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, i the currentyear, for Assessment Year 2014-15 for
the comiputition of ann's Jength price in. réfationto international fransactions, As per the order of the: Transfer Pricing Officer, an upward
adjustment of s, 58,93 lakh was made to the income of the Company.

The Campany is contesting the denands and the management believes that ity position: will likély e upheld jn'the appellate procdss. No tax

liabitity tits been accrucd I8 the fndneial staements. The management believes that the wltimate outcome. of this proceeding will 1ot have' o
mterial adverse effect on the Company’s lnaadial position dnd results ol operations.
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Calvin Wiein Avvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Premivm Garments Wiholesate Teading Private Limited)
Nofes to the finaneial statements for the yeav ended Maveh 31, 2018

Note 26: Retated party transactions

a) Name of related paities and nature of velationship:
ioJaintventure partoer
PV Singapore Private Limited
Arviind Brands & Retail Limited (11 Novewber 3, 2016)
Arvind Fashions Limited (from November 4, 2010)

i Owned/ controlled by the'Holding or Ultiniate Holding Company direetly or indivectly

PVH Asia Limited

PVH Far East Limited

PVH Europe In¢

PVH Neckwear g,

Calvin Klgin Ine,

Calvin Klein Furope BV

Apvind Lifestyle Brands Limited

Arvind Titernet - A division of Arvind Limited
Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Tommy Hilliger Arvind Fashion Privite Limited

K ey management persannet (KMP)
Parag Sudhir Dani (Up 1o April 30,20 I7)

b} Discloyure in respect of related party transactions:

Re.in lakhs

Nature of transactions March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
Issuc of equity shares
PV Sinpapore Private Limited 3.80 17.00
Arvind Brands & Retait Limited . 16.34
Arvind Fashions Limited 373 -
Share premium amount
PVH Singapore Private Limited 1.006.20 1.003.20
Arvind Brands & Rewil Limited - 963.86
Arvind Fashions Limited 986.26 -
Revenue from apérations (net of returns) -
Arvind Internet - A division of Arvind Limited {24.01) 29.34
Shared services expenses )
Arvind Lilestyle Brands Linited 246,97 669.10
Tonmmy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Private 1iniited 256.37 -
Royatly
Calvin Klein Ine. 1,140,58 1.033:93
Advertisement and publicity
Calvin Rlein Inc. 109.30 109.29.
Professional charges
Calvin Rlcin Inc. 0.99 548
Payments made on behalfof the Compuny by related parties
Arvvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 182,44 146,07
PV Far st Limited 0.59 -
Purehase of License (Intangible ussets)
Cafvin Klein e 714.23 -
Purchase of traded goods
PV Asia Limited 3.907.82 4.641.66
PV Far Last Limited 145.67 42577
Arvind Goodhill Suil’x\flzmul’ucn'u'ing Private Linited 53.99 134.06
Calvin Klein Europe BY 2.80 -
PVIE Neckwear e, 0.38 .
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Culvin Klein Avvind Fashion Private Limited
(formerly Premivm Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes to the Tinancial statements for the vear énded March 31,2018

Interest on overdue payments

PVH Asia Limited - 141.01
Calvin Klgin Ine, . 11,15
Linbility no longer required, written back

PV Asia Limited '538.96 -
Calvin Klein Ine. 30.14 -
Buying vlfice commission ;
PVH Asia Limited 30.17 82.54
PV Far Fast Limited 2.50 6.04
PVH Europe, Ine 0.46 33
Commission paid

Arviid Interiet - A division of Arvind Limited 8.14 12.38
Managerinl Remuneration (reler note below)

Parag Sudhir Dani {up to April 30. 2017) 1146 230.92

¢) Outstanding balances payable/ receivable from related parties

R inlakhs

Natare of transactions Mareh 31,2018 Mureh 31, 2017

Finaneial linhilities

Trade payables (including provisions)

PVH Asia Linited 1.031.80 2,054.89

Calvin Klein Ihe, 316.06 399,10

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited 14.89 21569

PVEE Far Bast Limited 6138 229.99

Tommy Hilfiger Arvind Fashion Privaté Limited 5863 -

Arvind Tnternet = A division of Arvingd Limiwd 20.52 12.38

Arvind Goodhill Suit Manulacturing Private Limited 37 -

Calvin Klein Europe BV 2.80 -

PVH Europe; fne 0.35 331

Parug Sudhir Dani’ “ 59.71
Othereurrent Habilities

Advance from customers

Arvind liternet = A division of Arvind Limited 17.35 -
Finaneial assets

Security déposits

Avvind Uifestyle Brands Limited 39.41 39.41

Trade receivables

Arvind Hiteriet - A division of Arvind Limited - 26,95

Terms und conditions of transactions with refated partes

The sales (& and purchasés from related parties are mide on terms. equivalent o those that prevadl in amy’s length- transactions. Outstanding
hatances at the: year-end are unsceurcd and normally Interest lreg-exeept i case of overdue payments and setdement ocecurs in cash. There-have
been no guarinices provided o received for diy related party reccivables or ;1;\5*:1!>lcs., For the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the
Company has tot recorded aiy impairment of receivables relating lo amounts owed by related partics: ‘This assessment is undertaken cachi financial
vear through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates,

Compensation of key management personnel
Muarch 31,2008 Muareh 31,2017

Rs. inlakhs

Rs. in Inkhs

Salary, wages and bunas 10.94 22401
Contribution 1o provident and other-funds .52 6.91
11.46 230,92

Note:

1. The remunertion to the key management personnel does ot include thesprovisions made for gratiity & leave benelits; as they are determined on
. . . . TN y N :

dinactunrial basis (o @’(A?grgn{ 1 s whale, T
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Calvin Klein Arvind Fashiow Private Limited
(Formerly Premium Garments Wholesade Trading Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2018

Note 27: Vinhedged foreign ¢currency exposure

a) Derivatives outstaniling as at the veporting date AMarch 31,2018 Mareh 31,2017
Forward contract Lo buy $2,750,000 $2,538,680

Rs, 1,788.71 lakh

) Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at thie reporting date
" “ ‘ (=3

Particutars March 31,2018

R 1,646.33 Takh

Mareh 31,2017

Trade priyables (USS)

Short-term borrowings {USS)

(This $pace lias been intestivnally tejt blank)
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Calvin Klein Arvind Fashion Private Limited
{formerty Premiom Garments Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
Notes to the Toanciat statentents for the vear ended Marcl 31,2018

Note 28; Segment reporting

Business segiments

The Campany is prisadly crigaged in a single business segment viz,, trading of readymade garments and gecessories of Catvin Klein branded products, which is
aiveried by similar set of risks and retums. The operations af the Company primarily cater 1o the market in India, which the management views as a single segment.
Accordingly no separate segnwent disclosures are required.

Note 295 Hedging netivities

Derivative not designated as hadging instruments

“The Comprany uses foreign exchange forward comracts o manuge some of its Tareign curreney wansaction exposures. The fareizn exchange Torvward contiagts ate not
Jesipnared as Cash flow hedges and are éntered Tt for periods consistent with foreign eurrency exposuse ol the undertying transactions;

Note 30: Falr values ad fadv vatue hierarchy
The vartying amotnts of césh and cash equividents; other bank balances, trade reecivables, oflige financial ussets, borrowings, tde pavables aud other finaneial
Habilities are considered 1o be same as their fair viloes, due (0 their short-leen nure:

The catrving values of seeurity depogits Trom customers and seeurity deposit paid are considered to Ue reasosably same as their fair values. Thesedwe classified as level
2 fuir vilues i the fair vahue hieruchy due w intlusion of ubervable inputs including counterpany credit risk.

Note 31: Finnneial risk nuinagement objectives and policies

The Company™s principal Tinancial Habilities, other than derivalives, comprise borrowings, sceurity deposit, trade and other payables, The main purpose of these
findnciat liabitities i W support the Company’s operations, e Compang's prineipal financial assets. include trade and -ether receivables, ‘and cash and cash
cquivalents that derive direetly from its operations. )

The Company's activi we exposed ol markel risk, eredit risk and Houidity visk In order W minimise any adverse elfects on the financial performance of the
Company, foreipn ekelinge. forward comtract, are entered o hedge freiun currency exposures. Derivatives ure used exclusively for hedging: purpose and ot as

trading’ specylative instruments, The board of directors reviews.and agrecs policies for managing cach of these risks, which arg summarised below:

1) Murket visk

Starket risk i the-risk that the Tair vatue of Tuture cosh Nows of o finascinl instriament will Duetuate’ beciuse of changes in atket prices. Market sk comprises Wwo
types of risk: inlerest rate risk wid currency risk . Financial instrainents-allected by market nisk include borrowinigs, trade nad other payable.

The sensitivity anabysis i the folliwing sections relate 10 the position as at Mareh 31, 2018 and March 31,2017 “The sensitivity of the relevant prafivand lossiteinis
the elTeet of the assumed.changes in the fespeetive market risks THis is based on the financial assets and financial lobilities beld as of March 31, 2018,

iy tnterest vate risk
Interest rate risk i¢ the risk that the faie valué or Tuture cush Hows of a Jinancial ipstrumest will flucivate because of chai
Expasure 1 the risk of char

o T markel inierast rates: The Company's
ses i ket frterest wited Telates primarily 1o the Company”s debt obligations with Noating interest rates.

oterest rate seasitivity
The fallwing table demonsirates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change ininterest rates on that portion of borrowings atfected. Wilh oif other variables held
constit, the Company’s profit belore wx s afteeted though the fmpact on oating fate hormwings., as G

March 31, 2018 Mareh 31,2017
Rs. in lakhs <. in fakhs
Hasis pomts 0,3% increase (.5% deerease 0.5%% incrense 1.3% duecrease
ErTect on profit before tas 2128y 21.28 {15.43) 15.83

“The wssumed movement in-basis piints 1o the interest rate seasitivity analysis is b
vofatilisy thisn in prior yedrs.

d on the currenily obiservable market environment, showing a significantly higher

The Tnterest rale senstivity is bused on the closing balance of short term borrowings bearing visrinble interest raes.

i) Foreign cutreney risk

n cutreney risk is thie risk that the vair value of Future cash flaws of an exposure will Huctuate beeause of chanpes. in-foreign exchange rates. The Company's
esposure I thisnisk ol changes in forcign exvhinge rates telates primarily (o the Company’s aperating activities denominaed in foreign cutreniy,

Tive Copany manages s forcign cufrency risk by hedging il foreign curtency exposure using forgign currency forward contracts,

Fardign currency seasitivity

The foltowing tables demionstrite the sensitivity to a réasonably possible change in USE, with all other variables beld constant. The impact on the Company’s profit
belbre 1ax 15 due to changes i the Tair value of monetary assets and Habitities. The Company’s exposure to-foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not
material.

Mavch 31,2018 Marech 31,2017
‘ Rein fakhy Ry, in laklis
Change m USH 1% increase 194 decregse 144 inerease Yo decrease
1itTeet on prolit before tax and on pre-tax equity . . (36.34) 3634
e

eand
&

\\

30 of 33




Calviin Klein Arving Fashion Privite Limited
{Tormerty Prenium Gavinents Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
_Notes 1 the financial statements Tor th year ended March 31, 2018

by Credit
Credit risk is the sk thatcotmerpaity” will not meet its obligations under-a financial instruawent or customer contruct, leading 0 financial loss: The Company is
exposed (0 credil disk from its operating activities {primarily trade and other reccivables) and Trom s investing activitics. including depasitg with banks and financial
institulions and other financial insteuments.

(i) Trade nnd uther Feceivables
Cuistomer vredit risk is mans jaed by the Compuny”s established policy, procedures and conirol relating 1o custamer credit Tisk manigement, Cuistanding custonmer
receivables are regularly monitored and eredit quality of o customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with thig assessinent,

The imasimum exposare (o credit sisk at the reporting date is the carryingvalue of trade and other receivables-as disclosed I note 5.1, 5.2 and 6, The movement in
atlowance for impuinment in respeet of trade and othser receivables during the yebr was‘as follows:

Allowsuce Tor eredit loss Tortrade receivables March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Ry, in fakhs Rs, i takhs
Opening balance 544.43 544.43
Provision made (utilised) during the year - ot
Closing bajunce 54443 34443

Ast March 31, 2018, the Couipany-ind 12 custoniers March 31,2017, 9 castainérs)y that owed the Campany more thian Rs. 100 Jakh each and accounted Tor
approXimiiely. mard than 9% (March 31, 2007063%) of all the recdivibles omstanding,

Allownnee for credit foss for other receivables March 31,2018 Mareh 31,2017
s, i Taklis Ricintakhy
Opening bulitee f41.11 104,23
Pravision niude during the vear “ 36.88
Closing bafance 141,10 14141

Nosingle supplivr-batinee accounted or ndore than 1075 of the othier receivibles as of Mareh 31,2018 and March 31, 2017, There-dsne significant concentration of
Crédie risk,

(i) Finandinl instrunients and deposits:
Credit tsk on vash and cash equivalents is limited a8 the Company peiicrally transacts with banks with high credit ratings assigned by infernational and domestic credit
Tt dgencios.

o} Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk £s the rigk that e Company may tot be able 1o snedt its present aid Natore cash ad collateral obligation without incurring \mmupmhk losses, The
Company's objective is 1o, 1l all imes araintan optimwn level of Tigqulidity to meet its cash and colhugnal réquirements:

The Compant manitors its risk of shoitage of Tunds, The Company’s objective 18 1o maintain o balance hetween continuity of Tunding and fexibility through the use of
bank overdralts? bank loans: The Company assessed the concentrution of risk with respect 1o relinancing its debt and concluded it 10 be moderate. The Company has
aceess 10 a guificiént variery of sources of funding and debt niaturing wilhin 12 monthis can be rolied over with existing lenders,

The table below summarises the matarity protfile of ihe Company’s financial labilities based on contractual undiscounted payments
customers:

sxceptfor.Security deposits from

{Rs Hrtaklis)
Axat Mareh 31,2008

Less than § vear Lvear to § vears Mare than S vears Total
Borrwings - - 4,235,509
Trade puyables ) - - 200403
Seeurity deposits from customers - 1,303.39 - 1,303.39
Oither Tinancial linbitities 63,41 . - 6541
Asat Mareh 31,2017
Less than 1 vear I yearto 8 vears Movethun 8 yeary Total
Horsowings 4,961 .19 . - 496119
Trade pavables 390349 . B 3.963,49
Securny deposits from customers B 110976 . 1.109.76
Other fimaneal Habilities 28810 . v 285.10

Lxcussive visk coneentration

Coneeritrations grise when a number of counterpartios a cugs

ed in similar businegs adtivities, o Gelivities i the same’ geographical region, or have. econontic
fentuares that swould tause theirabilify to meet contractust obligations 1o be similarly affected by chunyes in cconomic, political or other vonditions. Congentrations
fidicate the relative sensitivity of the Company”’s performance 1o developments affecting a particulac industry.

The Company deads in a leading apparet briand - Catvin Klein wnd is the solg supplier of the brand's products in India
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Calvin Kiein Arvinid Faslion Private Limited
(Tormerly Premimm Gurments Wholessle Trading Private Limited)
Notes to the financind statéaients for the vear ended Murch 31, 2018

Note 320 Capital management

For the purpose ol the Company’s capital management, capital includes
holders of the Company. The primary objectiviof the Compmy’s cupital manaigement is to-ensure’ that it maiitaing an efficient ca
fatios iy ordet 1o.support its busingss ind maximise shareholder value.

sued equity capital, sharepremivm and all other equily reserves-attriburable © the equity
pital structure and hédtihy capital

The Company sanages its capital strucitire ahd makes adjustnents 1o it in light of chinges in“ccuomic conditions or its business requirements. To saintain or ndjust
the capital Strusture; the Coinpany may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, retuns capital to sharcholders or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital
using wpeating ratio, which isnet debt divided by totl capiial plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing foins dnd borowings less cash
and short-tena deposits (inchuding other bank balance).

March 31,2018 Mareli 31,2017
Rs! i Iakhx Ry, in lakhs
Borrawings (note 10,2) ) 4,255.59 4.961.19
Luss: Cash and cash cquivalent-and other bank balances (nowe3 3 and $.4) (44.19) (378.69)
Net debt 421140 4,582.50
Equity share sipilal {hote $) 100,93 93,40
Other equity (note ) 3,539.71 2,191.38
Total capital J.640.64 2,284.78-
‘Capital and net-debt 7.852.04 0.867.28
S34% (AN

Gearing ratio
I arder toachieve this overall objective; the Campang’s cipital manugenent, amongst other things, aims o ensure it it meets: financial covénants attached 1o the
ititerest hearing borrowings thi deline Capital structure requirements: Breaches v medting the financiul covenonts would permit the bank ta immediately- catl
Lorrgwings. There have beenno breaches inhe-dinancial covenunts ol any horiowing i the current period,

Nachanges were made i the objechives, policics or processes for managing capital daring the vears eided NMarch 31,2018 and March Y1, 2017,

{Liis space hux been mamionddy ofi blank)
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Calvin Klein Arvind Faxhion Private Limited
(Toroverly Prenifum Garments Wholesafe Frading Privite Limited)
Notes 1o the Tinnucial statements Tor the venr ended March 31, 2018

Note 33: Vvansfer Pricing

During the vear ended Murch 31, 3018, the Company has entered ino certain transactions-with its related partics as defined under section 92BA of Income Tax
Act, 1961 ("the Act™), The Complny, as required under the Act.is in the process of gctiing the transfer pricing evaloation conducted for Intermational and
Specified Domestic Transactions undertaken during the vear, The Company is confideit thar the nternational and Specitied Dontestic Travsactions’ with
dssucinted/related Citerprises aretar arm's length, and accordingly does not expect any materia) Tinancial adjustment on completion of the transfer pricing
evalution;

Nule 34: Previcus year figures have heen regrouped/rectussilied. where netessary, to confirny 1o current year classification;

A perour report T even date

For S.R-Batibol & Associates LLP Forand on behilf of'the board of directorsof
Chartered Accountants: . Calviv Klein Arvind Fashion Privite Limited B
ICAT Firm Registration Number! 1¢1049W/ 12300004 {(formerly Premtiam Garmints Wholesale Trading Private Limited)
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